
          

 

SEBASTIAN RIVER 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 
 

JUNE 6, 2018 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

9:00 A.M. 
& 

LANDOWNERS’ MEETING  
10:00 A.M. 

 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

The Oaks Center 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.sridfl.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
 

AGENDA 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Meeting Room of the Marine Bank & Trust 
Island Location – Admiral 
571 Beachland Boulevard 
Vero Beach, Florida 32963 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

June 6, 2018 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. March 7, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………......................................Page 4 

G. Old Business 

1. Update on FEMA Maps 

2. Update Regarding 82nd Avenue Right of Way Acquisition.............................................................Page 9 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Letter from Indian River County Regarding Lateral D Canal……………..Page 38 

2. Discussion Regarding Repairs to the Lateral D Gate Structure……………………………………Page 39 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2018-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Proposed Budget……….Page 48 

4. Consider Resolution No. 2018-02 – Adopting a Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement………………Page 52 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Water Quality Report………………………………………………………………………………Page 54 

2. Sand Mine Updates 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 7, 2018 
 
 

 
 

A. Call to Order  
 
District Administrator Todd Wodraska called the March 7, 2018 Regular Board Meeting of the 
Sebastian River Improvement District to order at 10:06 a.m. at the Law Office of Samuel Block, 
1555 Indian River Drive, Suite A220, Vero Beach, Florida 32960. 
 

B. Proof of Publication  
 
Proof of publication was presented showing that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in Indian River Press Journal on November 22, 2017, as legally required. Mr. 
Wodraska noted that a sign was posted on Suite B125, the old Law Office of Samuel Block, and 
the meeting start was postponed for five minutes. 
 

C. Establish Quorum 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors present: 
 
Board of Supervisors  

Chairman Sean Sexton Present 

Supervisor Jeff Bass Present 

Supervisor Tom Hammond  Present  

 
Staff members in attendance were: 

District Administrator Todd Wodraska Special District Services, Inc. 

District Counsel Samuel Block Samuel A. Block, P.A. 

District Engineer George Simon Carter & Associates 

 
Members of the public in attendance: 
 

 Dan Corrigan 
 Edward de la Parte 
 Jason Nunemaker 
 Bob Ulevich 
 Court reporter 
 Scott Hodges 

 
 
 

Page 4



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 7, 2018 
 
 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 
 

None. 
 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 
 

There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 

F. Approval of Minutes  
1. December 6, 2017 Regular Board Meeting  

 
The following edits were suggested: 
 
Page 5, Item 4, second paragraph, second sentence: 
 
He noted that this work was not performed nor authorized by the SRID and could impact 
drainage for surrounding properties. 
 
Page 5, Item 4, add to end of the sentence of paragraph 3: 
 
…and if it was violated. 
 
Page 5, Item 4, seventh paragraph, first sentence: 
 
Mr. Bass suggested engaging a mediator to try and define the Decree. 
 
Page 6, Item J, Davis Sand mine, second sentence: 
 
Mr. Davis also stated that he will be applying for a permit for another sand mine on property 
adjacent to his. 
 
There was a motion made by Mr. Sexton, seconded by Mr. Hammond, to approve the minutes of 
December 6, 2017, Regular Board Meeting, as amended.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 

 
G. Old Business 
 

1. Update on FEMA Maps 

Mr. Simons reported Indian River County and FEMA are behind schedule on the maps but he 
noted that comments and input to the challenges are due back from those departments in the next 
few weeks. 
 
  

Page 5



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 7, 2018 
 
 

2. Consider on 82nd Avenue Right of Way Acquisition 

Mr. Wodraska presented the offer from FDOT totaling $112,800 for property and improvements 
deemed necessary for the 82nd Ave roadway project.  After a brief discussion the Board agreed to 
move forward with the process of declaring property surplus but they wanted to receive a copy of 
the appraisal. 
 
There was a motion made by Mr. Hammond, seconded by Mr. Bass, to begin the process of 
declaring the right-of-way, based on the maps provided, as surplus to be able to sell the property, 
if desired.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. Lateral D Watershed  

a. Discussion Regarding Selection of Mediator 

Mr. Wodraska reviewed his memo that was in the agenda package that reviewed the work that 
was done to interview two mediators: Carlos Alvarez and Jim Nicholas.  He asked the Board for 
feedback on whether they wanted to pursue mediation. 
 
Mr. Bass stated that he was interested in getting an interpretation of the 1967 Final Decree.  He 
asked Mr. Simons what the current process is for using the SRID facilities.  Mr. Simons 
explained there is a permit process that has been adopted by the SRID Board. 
 
Mr. Hammond stated that he would prefer to trust the current process of permit applications to 
“play out”.  He also asked if the landowners have indicated what they want in terms of drainage 
into the Lateral D canal. 
 
Mr. Sam Block summarized the language in the 1967 Final Decree noting it is the law of the land 
in terms of drainage and if any would like a change that would requiring changing the law, most 
likely through a legal process. 
 
Mr. Sexton felt strongly that the SRID cannot stray from the Final Decree. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Ed de la Parte, representing the Corrigan family, handed out a map of the Watershed plus 
surrounding areas noting that there are as many as 14 property owners that are potentially 
affected.  He reviewed the changes in land uses, ways of life and technology since the Final 
Decree was written.  Mr. de la Parte explained that mediation is the most likely result if a lawsuit 
is filed. 
 
Mr. Scott Hodges, representing the Ansin properties, stated that they are comfortable with the 
simple approach of living with the Final Decree noting they have no objection to operating under 
the terms of the Decree. Mr. Bass clarified that the 2-inch rule was for the drainage system inside 
of canal D and that the volume of canal D is dictated by the Decree. 

Page 6



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 7, 2018 
 
 
Jason Nunemaker, City Manager of Fellsmere, stated that he needs to ensure that the regulations 
on drainage by the SRID and the Final Decree are not incompatible with the Fellsmere 
Comprehensive Plan.  He asked what the existing Two-Inch rule means in terms of drainage 
modeling. 
 
Mr. Simon explained that the Two-Inch Rule limitation is a better way for the SRID to manage 
drainage but that his drainage models show that additional volume limitations are needed to help 
protect SRID property owners from flooding. 
 
Mr. Bass stated that Lateral D was never intended as a drainage ditch but if there was a 
development application for a property owner that wanted to drain into Lateral D that the SRID 
will require a permit that will be considered on a case by case basis. 
 
There was a motion made by Mr. Bass, seconded by Mr. Hammond, to have the SRID continue 
to operate the Lateral D Watershed under the 1967 Final Decree and if a property owner wants 
something different then apply for a SRID permit.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
There was discussion about having a time frame in terms of defining the drainage volumes but 
instead they asked the District Engineer to bring back a suggestion at the next meeting. 
 
 

b. Consider Approval of Engagement Letter – Special Counsel Representation 
from Manson Bolves Donaldson Varn Attorneys at Law 

 
No action taken on this item. 
  

c. Discussion Regarding Next Steps 

See above. 
  
H.  New Business 

 
 
I.  Administrative Matters 
 
       1. Water Quality Report 
 
The report was provided in the agenda packet. 
 

1. Updates Regarding Sand Mine Permits 
 
Davis Sand Mine 

 

Page 7



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 7, 2018 
 
 
Mr. Simons reported that this mine has been found to be digging in the SRID right-of-way, 
which unacceptable and could have negative consequences to the SRID facilities.   He noted that 
Indian River County code has been made aware of the situation. 
 
There was a motion made by Mr. Sexton, seconded by Mr. Hammond to suspend the SRID 
drainage permit for the Davis Sand Mine immediately.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. Announce Annual Landowners’ Meeting- June 6, 2018 
 
Mr. Wodraska announced the meeting has been scheduled and the seat currently held by Mr. 
Tom Hammond will be up for election. 
 
 J.  Board Member Comments 
 
Mr. Bass stated he would like staff to look at the alterations and cleaning of Lateral D that have 
occurred recently to see if there are potential consequences to the SRID property owners. 
 
 

L.  Adjournment 
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:57 a.m.   

 

 

 

 

    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chair/Vice-Chairman 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Sebastian River Improvement 
District (“District”) is required by Chapter 298, Florida Statutes, to approve a Proposed Budget 
for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2018/2019 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for              , 2018 at 
10:00 a.m. at the offices of Samuel A. Block, P.A. located at 1555 Indian River Drive, Suite 
B125, Vero Beach, Florida 32960, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed 
Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 6th day of June, 2018. 
 

 
ATTEST: SEBASTIAN RIVER  
 IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 48



    Sebastian River
  Improvement District

    Proposed Budget For
    Fiscal Year 2018/2019

     October 1, 2018 - September 30, 2019

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, STATE OF FLORIDA, 
APPROVING THE REVISED FLORIDA STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID 
AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the State Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, Florida Statutes, 

authorizes the state and its political subdivisions to develop and enter into mutual aid agreements 

for reciprocal emergency aid and assistance in case of emergencies too extensive to be dealt with 

unassisted; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Sebastian River Improvement District 

(“District”) hereby approve an agreement with the State of Florida, Division of Emergency 

Management, concerning the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Emergency Management requires an 

independent special district to participate in the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement to be eligible 

for funds under Administrative Rule 27P-19, Base Funding for County Emergency Management 

Agencies and Municipal Competitive Grant and Loan Programs; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, STATE OF FLORIDA, 
THAT: 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 

Section 2. That execution of the attached revised Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement is 
hereby authorized, and the Agreement is hereby approved. 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 6th day of June 2018. 
 

  
 SEBASTIAN RIVER  
  IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, 
ATTEST: FLORIDA 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 52



Page 53



Please contact your project manager if you recognize any discrepancy in this form or have any questions about your project.

Thank you for choosing Pace Analytical Services, LLC.

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

SAMPLE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

LIMS USE: SAF
LIMS OBJECT ID: 35389050

Pace Project Manager:

Pace Analytical Project ID:

Samples Received:

Estimated Completion:

Terrence Anderson

May 10, 2018

Client Project ID:

Client PO#:

Samples Submitted By:

Sebastian Quarterly SW Phone 954-582-4300
terrence.anderson@pacelabs.com

Sebastian WCD

35389050

May 1, 2018 11:18 AM

CC: Frances Ware,Todd Wodraska

Customer Sample ID
Pace Analytical
Lab ID Matrix

Date/Time
Collected Method

35389050001 Water 04/30/18 16:45 2540C Total Dissolved Solids510 Bridge
2540D Total Suspended Solids
300.0 IC Anions
350.1 Ammonia
351.2 Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen
353.2 Nitrogen, NO2/NO3
365.3 Phosph. Total Low Level
5210B BOD
Field Data
Field Services Charge
Salinity by Conductivity

Page 1 of 205/01/2018 02:36 PM Page 54



Please contact your project manager if you recognize any discrepancy in this form or have any questions about your project.

Thank you for choosing Pace Analytical Services, LLC.

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

SAMPLE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

LIMS USE: SAF
LIMS OBJECT ID: 35389050

Customer Sample ID Method

Analyte List

Compound UnitsLimit
Reporting

Salinity by Conductivity510 Bridge Salinity 7 ppt
2540C Total Dissolved Solids Total Dissolved Solids 5 mg/L
2540D Total Suspended Solids Total Suspended Solids 5 mg/L
300.0 IC Anions 28 Days Chloride 5 mg/L
350.1 Ammonia Nitrogen, Ammonia 0.05 mg/L
351.2 Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total 0.5 mg/L
353.2 Nitrogen, NO2/NO3 unpres Nitrogen, Nitrate 0.05 mg/L
365.3 Phosph. Total Low Level Phosphorus, Total (as P) LL 0.004 mg/L
5210B BOD, 5 day BOD, 5 day 2 mg/L
Field Data Collected By

Collected Date
Collected Time
Field pH Std. Units
Field Temperature deg C
Appearance
Field Specific Conductance umhos/cm
Field Oxidation Potential mV
Oxygen, Dissolved mg/L
Field Residual Chlorine
REDOX mV
Turbidity NTU
Chlorine, Total Residual mg/L
Chlorine, Free mg/L
Permit number
Chain-of-custody number
Depth to Water feet
Water Level(NGVD) feet
Reference Elevation feet
Field Oxidizers
Well Volume Purged
Iron, Ferrous mg/L
Sulfite mg/L
Salinity ppt
Sulfide mg/L

Page 2 of 205/01/2018 02:36 PM Page 55



#=CL#

May 10, 2018

LIMS USE: FR - TODD WODRASKA

LIMS OBJECT ID: 35389050

35389050
Project:
Pace Project No.:

RE:

Todd Wodraska
Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Rd
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Dear Todd Wodraska:
Enclosed are the analytical results for sample(s) received by the laboratory on May 01, 2018. The
results relate only to the samples included in this report. Results reported herein conform to the most
current, applicable TNI/NELAC standards and the laboratory's Quality Assurance Manual, where
applicable, unless otherwise noted in the body of the report.

If you have any questions concerning this report, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Terrence Anderson
terrence.anderson@pacelabs.com

Project Manager
954-582-4300

Enclosures

cc: Frances Ware, Special District Services, Inc.

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 1 of 19Page 56



#=CP#

CERTIFICATIONS

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Ormond Beach Certification IDs
8 East Tower Circle, Ormond Beach, FL  32174
Alabama Certification #: 41320
Connecticut Certification #: PH-0216
Delaware Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Florida Certification #: E83079
Georgia Certification #: 955
Guam Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Hawaii Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Illinois Certification #: 200068
Indiana Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Kansas Certification #: E-10383
Kentucky Certification #: 90050
Louisiana Certification #: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Louisiana Environmental Certificate #: 05007
Maryland Certification: #346
Michigan Certification #: 9911
Mississippi Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Missouri Certification #: 236
Montana Certification #: Cert 0074

Nebraska Certification: NE-OS-28-14
Nevada Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
New Hampshire Certification #: 2958
New Jersey Certification #: FL022
New York Certification #: 11608
North Carolina Environmental Certificate #: 667
North Carolina Certification #: 12710
Oklahoma Certification #: D9947
Pennsylvania Certification #: 68-00547
Puerto Rico Certification #: FL01264
South Carolina Certification: #96042001
Tennessee Certification #: TN02974
Texas Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
US Virgin Islands Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Virginia Environmental Certification #: 460165
Wyoming Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
West Virginia Certification #: 9962C
Wisconsin Certification #: 399079670
Wyoming (EPA Region 8): FL NELAC Reciprocity

South Florida Certification IDs
3610 Park Central Blvd N, Pompano Beach, FL 33064 Florida Certification #: E86240

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 2 of 19Page 57



#=SS#

SAMPLE SUMMARY

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Lab ID Sample ID Matrix Date Collected Date Received

35389050001 510 Bridge Water 04/30/18 16:45 05/01/18 11:18

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 3 of 19Page 58



#=SA#

SAMPLE ANALYTE COUNT

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Lab ID Sample ID Method
Analytes
Reported LaboratoryAnalysts

35389050001 510 Bridge SM 2520B Modified 1 PASI-SFTAN

SM 2540C 1 PASI-SFGDV

SM 2540D 1 PASI-SFGDV

SM 5210B 1 PASI-SFTAN

EPA 300.0 1 PASI-OCMD

EPA 350.1 1 PASI-OCLL

EPA 351.2 1 PASI-OAEM

EPA 353.2 1 PASI-OJMD

EPA 365.3 1 PASI-OBMU

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 4 of 19Page 59



#=AR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Sample: 510 Bridge Lab ID: 35389050001 Collected: 04/30/18 16:45 Received: 05/01/18 11:18 Matrix: Water

Parameters Results Units DF Prepared Analyzed CAS No. QualMDLPQL

Analytical Method:Field Data

Field pH 7.7 Std. Units 04/30/18 16:451
Field Temperature 28.9 deg C 04/30/18 16:451
Field Specific Conductance 2141.0 umhos/cm 04/30/18 16:451
Oxygen, Dissolved 8.54 mg/L 04/30/18 16:45 7782-44-71
Turbidity 22.40 NTU 04/30/18 16:451

Analytical Method: SM 2520B ModifiedSalinity by Conductivity

Salinity 7.0  U ppt 05/08/18 12:057.0 7.0 1

Analytical Method: SM 2540C2540C Total Dissolved Solids

Total Dissolved Solids 1290 mg/L 05/03/18 17:3310.0 10.0 1

Analytical Method: SM 2540D2540D Total Suspended Solids

Total Suspended Solids 28.0 mg/L 05/04/18 16:375.0 5.0 1

Analytical Method: SM 5210B5210B BOD, 5 day

BOD, 5 day 2.0  U mg/L 05/06/18 17:5205/01/18 18:432.0 2.0 1

Analytical Method: EPA 300.0300.0 IC Anions 28 Days

Chloride 485 mg/L 05/03/18 00:47 16887-00-625.0 12.5 5

Analytical Method: EPA 350.1350.1 Ammonia

Nitrogen, Ammonia 0.057 mg/L 05/04/18 14:18 7664-41-70.050 0.035 1

Analytical Method: EPA 351.2  Preparation Method: EPA 351.2351.2 Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total 0.66 mg/L 05/09/18 16:48 7727-37-905/04/18 08:450.50 0.086 1

Analytical Method: EPA 353.2353.2 Nitrogen, NO2/NO3 unpres

Nitrogen, Nitrate 0.077 mg/L 05/02/18 08:28 14797-55-80.050 0.025 1

Analytical Method: EPA 365.3  Preparation Method: EPA 365.3365.3 Phosph. Total Low Level

Phosphorus, Total (as P) LL 0.11 mg/L 05/09/18 12:30 7723-14-005/08/18 18:100.0040 0.0028 1

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 5 of 19Page 60



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

445711

SM 2520B Modified

SM 2520B Modified

Salinity Conductivity

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2416977

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Salinity ppt 7.0  U 7.0 05/08/18 12:017.0

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2416978LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Salinity ppt 34.935 100 90-110

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35390133002
2416979SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Salinity ppt 7.0  U 57.0  U

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 6 of 19Page 61



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

444798

SM 2540C

SM 2540C

2540C Total Dissolved Solids

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2412654

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 5.0  U 5.0 05/03/18 17:255.0

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2412655LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 296300 99 90-110

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35388997001
2412656SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 258 1 5260

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35389147003
2412657SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 425 0 5423

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 7 of 19Page 62



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

445102

SM 2540D

SM 2540D

2540D Total Suspended Solids

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2414180

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Total Suspended Solids mg/L 1.0  U 1.0 05/04/18 16:351.0

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2414181LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Total Suspended Solids mg/L 92.0100 92 90-110

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35389025002
2414182SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Total Suspended Solids mg/L 5.0  U 5ND

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35389053001
2414183SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Total Suspended Solids mg/L 5.0  U 55.0  U

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 8 of 19Page 63



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

444048

SM 5210B

SM 5210B

5210B BOD, 5 day

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2408494

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

BOD, 5 day mg/L 2.0  U 2.0 V05/06/18 17:172.0

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2408496LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

BOD, 5 day mg/L 206198 104 85-115

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35388987006
2408497SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

BOD, 5 day mg/L 2.0  U 202.0  U

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 9 of 19Page 64



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

444331

EPA 300.0

EPA 300.0

300.0 IC Anions

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2409914

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Chloride mg/L 2.5  U 5.0 05/02/18 21:402.5

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2409915LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Chloride mg/L 48.750 97 90-110

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

2412045MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35389147003

2412046

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

Chloride mg/L 50 107 90-110107 0 205043.4 96.8 96.8

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 10 of 19Page 65



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

444872

EPA 350.1

EPA 350.1

350.1 Ammonia

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2413289

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Nitrogen, Ammonia mg/L 0.035  U 0.050 05/04/18 13:580.035

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2413290LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Nitrogen, Ammonia mg/L 1.01 102 90-110

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2413292MATRIX SPIKE SAMPLE:
MSSpike

Result
35388412003

Nitrogen, Ammonia mg/L 1.81 104 90-1100.78

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35388412003
2413291SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Nitrogen, Ammonia mg/L 0.78 0 200.78

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 11 of 19Page 66



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

444879

EPA 351.2

EPA 351.2

351.2 TKN

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2413305

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total mg/L 0.086  U 0.50 05/09/18 16:400.086

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2413306LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total mg/L 19.020 95 90-110

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2413308MATRIX SPIKE SAMPLE:
MSSpike

Result
35388769001

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total mg/L 23.420 97 90-1104.1

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35388769001
2413307SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total mg/L 4.0 2 204.1

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 12 of 19Page 67



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

444235

EPA 353.2

EPA 353.2

353.2 Nitrate + Nitrite, Unpres.

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2409622

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Nitrogen, Nitrate mg/L 0.025  U 0.050 05/02/18 07:420.025

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35389248003
2409624SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Nitrogen, Nitrate mg/L 0.12 200.039  I

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35389242001
2409626SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Nitrogen, Nitrate mg/L 1.3 200.029  I

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 13 of 19Page 68



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:

QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:

Analysis Description:

445772

EPA 365.3

EPA 365.3

365.3 Low Level Total Phosphorus

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 2417322

Associated Lab Samples: 35389050001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Phosphorus, Total (as P) LL mg/L 0.0028  U 0.0040 05/09/18 11:500.0028

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2417323LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Phosphorus, Total (as P) LL mg/L 0.11.1 106 90-110

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

2417325MATRIX SPIKE SAMPLE:
MSSpike

Result
35389341001

Phosphorus, Total (as P) LL mg/L 0.33.1 108 80-1200.22

Parameter Units
Dup

Result
Max
RPD QualifiersRPDResult

35389341001
2417324SAMPLE DUPLICATE:

Phosphorus, Total (as P) LL mg/L 0.22 0 200.22

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 14 of 19Page 69



#=QL#

QUALIFIERS

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

DEFINITIONS

DF - Dilution Factor, if reported, represents the factor applied to the reported data due to dilution of the sample aliquot.

ND - Not Detected at or above adjusted reporting limit.

TNTC - Too Numerous To Count

MDL - Adjusted Method Detection Limit.

PQL - Practical Quantitation Limit.

RL - Reporting Limit.

S - Surrogate
1,2-Diphenylhydrazine decomposes to and cannot be separated from Azobenzene using Method 8270. The result for each analyte is
a combined concentration.
Consistent with EPA guidelines, unrounded data are displayed and have been used to calculate % recovery and RPD values.

LCS(D) - Laboratory Control Sample (Duplicate)

MS(D) - Matrix Spike (Duplicate)

DUP - Sample Duplicate

RPD - Relative Percent Difference

NC - Not Calculable.

SG - Silica Gel - Clean-Up

U - Indicates the compound was analyzed for, but not detected.
N-Nitrosodiphenylamine decomposes and cannot be separated from Diphenylamine using Method 8270.  The result reported for
each analyte is a combined concentration.
Pace Analytical is TNI accredited. Contact your Pace PM for the current list of accredited analytes.

TNI - The NELAC Institute.

LABORATORIES

Pace Analytical Services - Ormond BeachPASI-O

Pace Analytical Services - South FloridaPASI-SF

ANALYTE QUALIFIERS

The reported value is between the laboratory method detection limit and the laboratory practical quantitation limit.  I

Compound was analyzed for but not detected.  U

Indicates that the analyte was detected in both the sample and the associated method blank.V

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 15 of 19Page 70



#=CR#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA CROSS REFERENCE TABLE

Pace Project No.:

Project:

35389050

Sebastian Quarterly SW

Lab ID Sample ID QC Batch Method QC Batch Analytical Method
Analytical
Batch

35389050001 510 Bridge

35389050001 445711510 Bridge SM 2520B Modified

35389050001 444798510 Bridge SM 2540C

35389050001 445102510 Bridge SM 2540D

35389050001 444048 445293510 Bridge SM 5210B SM 5210B

35389050001 444331510 Bridge EPA 300.0

35389050001 444872510 Bridge EPA 350.1

35389050001 444879 446004510 Bridge EPA 351.2 EPA 351.2

35389050001 444235510 Bridge EPA 353.2

35389050001 445772 446038510 Bridge EPA 365.3 EPA 365.3

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,

without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, LLC.Date: 05/10/2018 05:14 PM

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

8 East Tower Circle

Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 16 of 19Page 71



P
ag

e 
17

 o
f 1

9

Page 72



Page 18 of 19Page 73



Page 19 of 19Page 74



 

 

AGENDA 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Meeting Room of the Marine Bank & Trust 
Island Location – Admiral 
571 Beachland Boulevard 
Vero Beach, Florida 32963 

LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 
June 6, 2018 
10:00 a.m. 

 
 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………Page 76 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Consider Adoption of Election Procedures…………………………………………………….Page 79 

E. Election of Chair for Landowners Meeting 

F. Election of Secretary for Landowners’ Meeting 

G. Approval of Minutes  

1. June 7, 2017 Landowners’ Meeting Minutes……………………………………………...Page 82 

H. Election of Supervisors 

1. Determine Number of Voting Units Represented or Assigned by Proxy…………………Page 85 
2. Nomination of Supervisors 
3. Casting of Ballots………………………………………………………………………….Page 86 
4. Ballot Tabulation and Result 

 

I. Other Business 

1. Receive Treasurer’s Report………………………………………………………………..Page 87 

2. Receive Engineer’s Report………………………………………………………………...Page 88 

J. Landowners’ Comments 

K. Adjourn 

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



 

 

 
SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

ELECTION PROCEDURES 
 

1. Landowners’ Meeting 

In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 2007-309, Laws of Florida, and applicable provisions 
of Chapter 298, it is required that an annual meeting of the Landowners of the District be held in 
June of each year for the purpose of electing a supervisor. To take the place of the retiring 
supervisor and hearing reports of the board of supervisors. The assembled Landowners shall 
organize by electing a Chairperson, who shall preside over the meeting; and a Secretary shall also 
be elected for recording purposes. 
  
2. Establishment of Quorum 

Any Landowner(s) present or voting by proxy shall constitute a quorum at the meeting of the 
Landowners. 
 
3. Nomination of Candidates 

At the meeting, the Chairperson shall call for nominations from the floor for Candidates for the 
Board of Supervisors. When there are no further nominations, the Chairperson shall close the floor 
for nominations. The names of each Candidate and the spelling of their names shall be announced. 
Nominees need not be present to be nominated. 
 
4. Voting 

Each Landowner shall be entitled to cast one vote for each acre (or lot parcel), or any fraction 
thereof, of land owned by him or her in the District, for each open position on the Board. (For 
example, if there are three positions open, an owner of one acre or less (or one lot parcel) may cast 
one vote for each of the three positions. An owner of two acres (or two lot parcels) may cast two 
votes for each of the three positions.) Each Landowner shall be entitled to vote either in person or 
by a representative present with a lawful written proxy. 
 
5. Registration for Casting Ballots 

The registration process for the casting of ballots by Landowners or their representatives holding 
their proxies shall be as follows:  
 

a) At the Landowners’ Meeting and prior to the commencement of the first casting of ballots 
for a Board of Supervisor position, each Landowner, or their representative if proxies are 
being submitted in lieu thereof, shall be directed to register their attendance and the total 
number of votes by acreage (or lot parcels) to which each claims to be entitled, with the 
elected Secretary of the meeting or the District’s Manager. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



b) At such registration, each Landowner, or their representative with a lawful proxy, shall be 
provided a numbered ballot for the Board of Supervisor position(s) open for election.  A 
District representative will mark on the ballot the number of votes that such Landowner, 
or their representative, is registered to cast for each Board of Supervisor position open for 
election. 
 

c) All Landowner proxies shall be collected at the time of registration and retained with the 
Official Records of the District for subsequent certification or verification, if required. 

 
6. Casting of Ballots 

Registration and the issuance of ballots shall cease once the Chairperson calls for the 
commencement of the casting of ballots for the election of a Board of Supervisor and thereafter no 
additional ballots shall be issued. 

The Chairperson will declare that the Landowners, or their representatives, be requested to cast 
their ballots for the Board of Supervisor(s).  Once the ballots have been cast, the Chairperson will 
call for a collection of the ballots. 

7. Counting of Ballots 

Following the collection of ballots, the Secretary or District Manager shall be responsible for the 
tabulation of ballots in order to determine the total number of votes cast for each candidate that is 
seeking election. 

The	board	of	 supervisors	 shall	 consist	 of	 three	persons	who,	 except	 as	 herein	otherwise	
provided,	shall	hold	office	for	a	term	of	3	years	and	until	their	successors	are	duly	elected	
and	qualified.	
 
8. Contesting of Election Results 

Following the election and announcement of the votes, the Chairperson shall ask the Landowners 
present, or those representatives holding proxies for Landowners, whether they wish to contest the 
election results.  If no contests are received, said election results shall thereupon be certified. 

If there is a contest, the contest must be addressed to the Chairperson and thereupon the individual 
casting a ballot that is being contested will be required to provide proof of ownership of the acreage 
for which they voted at the election within five (5) business days of the Landowners’ Meeting.  
The proof of ownership shall be submitted to the District Manager who will thereupon consult 
with the District’s General Counsel and together they will review the material provided and will 
determine the legality of the contested ballot(s).  Once the contests are resolved, the Chairperson 
shall reconvene the Landowners’ Meeting and thereupon certify the election results. 

9. Recessing of Annual Landowners’ Meeting 

In the event there is a contest of a ballot or of the election, the Landowners’ Meeting shall be 
recessed to a future time, date and location, at which time the election findings on the contest shall 
be reported in accordance with the procedure above and the newly elected Supervisor(s) shall 
thereupon take their Oath of Office. 

 

 Page 80



 

10. Miscellaneous Provisions 

a) Each Landowner shall only be entitled to vote in person or by means of a representative 
attending in person and holding a lawful written proxy in order to cast said Landowner’s 
votes. 
 

b) Proxies will not require that proof of acreage (or lot parcel) ownership be attached.  Rather, 
proof of ownership must be provided timely by the holder of the proxy, if the proxy is 
contested in accordance with the procedure above. 

Page 81



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 

JUNE 7, 2017 
 

 1

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Todd Wodraska called the June 7, 2017, Landowners’ Meeting of the 
Sebastian River Improvement District to order at 10:05 a.m. in the Northern Trust Bank 
Community Room at 755 Beachland Boulevard, Vero Beach, FL 32963. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
District Manager Todd Wodraska offered Proof of Publication showing that notice of the 
Landowners’ Meeting had been published in the Indian River Press Journal, as legally 
required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 
There was a quorum established with several landowners/proxy holders (see sign in sheet 
attached). 
 
Also in attendance were staff members:  District Manager Todd Wodraska and Len 
Lindahl, Jr. of Special District Services, Inc.; General Counsel Sam Block.; District 
Engineers George Simons and Marvin Carter of Carter & Associates. 
 
D. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF ELECTION PROCEDURES 
 
Mr. Wodraska explained the purpose of the annual landowners’ meeting and the process 
for the election.  
 
The Elections Procedures were adopted, as presented, with no objection. 
 
E. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 
 
Mr. Wodraska asked for nominations for a Chair for the Landowners’ meeting.   
 
There was a nomination for Jeff Bass. 
 
Mr. Bass was unanimously elected to serve as Chair for the meeting. 
 
F. ELECTION OF SECRETARY FOR LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 
 
Mr. Sexton recommended that Mr. Wodraska serve as the Secretary for the Landowners’ 
meeting.  
 
There were no objections and Mr. Wodraska was elected as the Secretary for the meeting. 
 

Page 82



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 

JUNE 7, 2017 
 

 2

 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.  June 1, 2016 Landowners’ Meeting Minutes 
 
There was a motion made by Mr. Hammond, seconded by Mr. Bass, to approve the June 
1, 2016 Landowners’ Meeting minutes, as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
H. ELECTION OF SUPERVISORS 
 1.  Determine Number of Voting Units 
 
Mr. Wodraska noted that the main purpose of the Landowners’ Meeting was to elect a 
Supervisor for a three year term of the seat most recently held by Shawn Sexton. 
 
1. Nomination of Candidates 
 
Mr. Bass called for nominations of candidates for the three year term. There were was 
only one nomination: 
 

 Shawn Sexton 
 
2. Casting of Ballots 
 
Casting of ballots was not necessary since there was only one nomination for one seat. 
 
3. Ballot Tabulations 
 
Shawn Sexton received all votes represented and was elected by acclamation. 
 
4. Certifications of the Results 
 
Mr. Wodraska asked if there were any objections to the election results. There were no 
objections. 
 
Mr. Bass certified the results of the election with Shawn Sexton receiving a three-year 
term as Supervisor of the Sebastian River Improvement District expiring in June 2020. 
 
I. OTHER BUSINESS 
 1.  Receive Treasurer’s Report 
 
Mr. Wodraska provided the Annual Treasurer’s Report, noting the SRID is in sound 
financial condition with a healthy fund balance. 
 
 

Page 83



SEBASTIAN RIVER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 

JUNE 7, 2017 
 

 3

 
1. Receive Engineer’s Report 
 
District Engineer George Simons presented and reviewed the Annual Engineer’s Report 
that was handed out at the meeting.   
 
J. LANDOWNERS’ COMMENTS 

There were no comments. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business for the Landowners’ Meeting, the meeting adjourned at 
10:33 a.m.  There were no objections 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 84



LANDOWNER PROXY 
SEBASTIAN RIVER  

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING  

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, the fee simple owner of the lands 
described herein, hereby constitutes and appoints        (“Proxy Holder”) 
for and on behalf of the undersigned, to vote as proxy at the meeting of the landowners of the Sebastian River 
Improvement District to be held on June 6, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the Meeting Room of the Marine Bank & 
Trust Island Location – Admiral located at 571 Beachland Boulevard, Vero Beach, Florida 32963. and at any 
adjournments thereof, according to the number of acres of unplatted land and/or platted lots owned by the 
undersigned landowner which the undersigned would be entitled to vote if then personally present, upon any 
question, proposition, or resolution or any other matter or thing which may be considered at said meeting 
including, but not limited to the Board of Supervisors. Said Proxy Holder may vote in accordance with their 
discretion on all matters not known or determined at the time of solicitation of this proxy, which may be 
legally considered at said meeting. 

 
This proxy is to continue in full force and effect from the hereof until the conclusion of the above noted 
landowners’ meeting and any adjournment or adjournments thereof, but may be revoked at any time by 
written notice of such revocation presented at the annual meeting prior to the Proxy Holder exercising the 
voting rights conferred herein. 

 

 
         
Printed Name of Legal Owner 

 
              
Signature of Legal Owner       Date 

 
 

 
Parcel Description*        # of Acres   

               

             

             
 

* Insert in the space above the street address of each parcel, the legal description of each parcel, or the tax 
identification number of each parcel. [If more space is needed, identification of Parcels owned may be 
incorporated by reference to an attachment hereto.] 

 
Pursuant to section 298 Florida Statutes (2018), a fraction of an acre is treated as one (1) acre entitling the 
landowner to one vote with respect thereto. 

 
TOTAL NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED VOTES:        
 

Please note that each eligible acre of land or fraction thereof is entitled to only one vote, for example, a  
husband and wife are together entitled to only one vote per their residence if it is located on one acre or less 
of real property. 
 

If the Legal Owner is not an individual, and is instead a corporation, limited liability company, 
limited partnership or other entity, evidence that the individual signing on behalf of the entity has 
the authority to do so should be attached hereto. (e.g. bylaws, corporate resolution, etc.) 

Page 85



 
BALLOT 

 
SEBASTIAN RIVER 

 IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDOWNERS’ MEETING 

 
ELECTION OF BOARD SUPERVISORS 

 
JUNE 6, 2018 

 
 
The undersigned certifies that he/she is the owner (___) or duly authorized 
representative of lawful proxy of an owner (___) of land in the Sebastian River 
Improvement District, constituting             acre(s) and hereby casts up to the 
corresponding number of his/her vote(s) for the following candidate/candidates to 
hold the above-named open position: 
 
Name of Candidate Number of Votes 
 
  ___________________ 
 
  ___________________ 
 
  ___________________ 
 
____________________________________                                    ______________________ 
 
____________________________________                                    ______________________ 
 
 

 

Signature:    

Printed Name:    

 
Street Address or Tax Parcel Id Number for your Real Property:  

  

  

   

 
BALLOT #  

Page 86



June 6, 2018

Sebastian River Improvement District Treasurer’s Report For Annual Landowners Meeting

The fund balance for the Sebastian River Improvement District at the close of Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 (September 30, 2016) was $216,663.

The fund balance for the Sebastian River Improvement District at the close of Fiscal Year 
2016/2017 (September 30, 2017) was $227,729.

The following table illustrates Fiscal Year 2016/2017 revenues and expenditures budgeted 
versus actuals:

Budgeted Actual Percentage
Revenue $153,177 $160,515 104%
Expenditures $206,000 $149,449 72%
Excess/(Shortfall) ($52,823) $11,066

It should be noted that the District budgeted to only collect 74% worth of an annual year’s 
expenditures and to use reserves to cover any shortfall. 

Special District Services, Inc.

Page 87



 
 

RECEIVE ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

 
 

 

  
 

Page 88


	Sebastian River Improvement District - June 6, 2018 Regular Board Meeting & Landowners' Meeting
	Agenda - Regular Board Meeting
	Proof of Publication
	March 7, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Update Regarding 82nd Avenue Right of Way Acquisition
	Discussion Regarding Letter from Indian River County Regarding Lateral D Canal
	Discussion Regarding Repairs to the Lateral D Gate Structure
	Consider Resolution No. 2018-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Proposed Budget
	Consider Resolution No. 2018-02 – Adopting a Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement
	Landscape Presentation
	Water Quality Report

	Agenda - Landowners' Meeting
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Adoption of Election Procedures
	June 7, 2017 Landowners’ Meeting Minutes
	Landowner Proxy
	Landowner Ballot
	Receive Treasurer’s Report
	Receive Engineer’s Report





